

联合国 粮食及 农业组织

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations Organisation des Nations Unies pour l'alimentation et l'agriculture Продовольственная и сельскохозяйственная организация Объединенных Наций Organización de las Naciones Unidas para la Alimentación y la Agricultura منظمة الأغذية والزراعة للأمم المتحدة

COUNCIL

Hundred and Fifty-sixth Session

Rome, 24 - 28 April 2017

Report of the 166th Session of the Finance Committee (27-31 March 2017)

Executive Summary

At its first regular session in 2017, the Committee examined the financial position of the Organization and other matters under its mandate. In this report of its 166th Session, the Committee:

- Makes specific recommendations to the Council: (i) urging Members to make timely and full payment of assessed contributions (para 8); (ii) on the proposed Scale of Contributions for the biennium 2018-19 (para 12); (iii) on the Medium Term Plan 2018-21 and Programme of Work and Budget 2018-19 (paras 20-21); and (iv) on its endorsement of the Director General's recommendations for extension of Audit Committee members (para 31).
- > **Informs** Council of its decision approving the forecasted budgetary Chapter transfers arising from implementation of the 2016-17 Programme of Work (para 18).
- **Brings to the attention** of Council its guidance to the Secretariat on the Organization's financial position, budgetary matters, human resources, oversight and other matters.

Suggested action by Council

The Council is requested to:

- a) <u>endorse</u> the recommendations of the Committee on timely payment of assessed contributions, the proposed Scale of Contributions for the biennium 2018-19, the Medium Term Plan 2018-21 and Programme of Work and Budget 2018-19 and the extension of Audit Committee members.
- b) <u>take note</u> of the decisions of the Committee on the forecasted budgetary chapter transfers arising from implementation of the 2016-17 Programme of Work.
- c) **endorse** the Committee's guidance provided to the Secretariat on all other matters within its mandate.

This document can be accessed using the Quick Response Code on this page; an FAO initiative to minimize its environmental impact and promote greener communications. Other documents can be consulted at www.fao.org



Queries on this document may be addressed to:

David McSherry Secretary, Finance Committee Tel: +39 06570 53719

Table of Contents

	Pages
Introduction	4
Monitoring Financial Position	5
Financial Position of the Organization	5
Report on Investments 2016	5
Scale of Contributions 2018-19	6
2016 Actuarial Valuation of Staff Related Liabilities	6
Budgetary Matters	6
Mid-Term Term Review Synthesis Report - 2016	6
Annual Report on Budgetary Performance and Programme and Budgetary Transfers for 17 Biennium	
Medium Term Plan 2018-21 and Programme of Work and Budget 2018-19	7
Human Resources	8
Human Resources Management	8
Oversight	9
FAO Audit Committee- 2016 Annual Report to the Director-General	9
Terms of Reference of the FAO Audit Committee	9
2016 Annual Report of the Inspector General	10
FAO Audit Committee Membership	10
Improved Methods of Work and Efficiency of the Finance Committee	
Other Matters	
Date and Place of the Hundred and Sixty-seventh Session	
Documents for information	
Anney - Scale of Contributions 2018-19	13

Introduction

- 1. The Committee submitted to the Council the following report of its 166th Session.
- 2. In addition to the Chairperson, Mr Khalid Mehboob, the following representatives of Members were present:
 - Ms Maria Esperança Pires Dos Santos (Angola)
 - Ms Cathrine Stephenson (Australia)
 - Mr Antonio Otávio Sá Ricarte (Brazil)
 - Mr Xie Jianmin (China)
 - Mr Khaled M.S.H. Eltaweel (Egypt)
 - Mr Mateo Nsogo Nguere Micue (Equatorial Guinea)
 - Mr Heiner Thofern (Germany)
 - Mr Benito Santiago Jiménez Sauma (Mexico)
 - Mr Lupino jr. Lazaro (Philippines)
 - Mr Vladimir V. Kuznetsov (Russian Federation)
 - Mr Sid Ahmed M. Alamain Hamid Alamain (Sudan)
 - Mr Thomas M. Duffy (United States of America)
- 3. The Chairperson informed the Committee that:
 - Ms Maria Esperança Pires Dos Santos (Angola) had been designated to replace Mr Carlos Alberto Amaral for this session;
 - Mr Xie Jianmin (China) had been designated to replace Mr Niu Dun for this session; and
 - Mr Sid Ahmed M. Alamain Hamid Alamain (Sudan) had been designated to replace Ms Abla Malik Osman Malik for this session.
- 4. A summary of the qualifications of the substitute representatives can be downloaded from the Governing and Statutory Body Web site at: http://www.fao.org/unfao/govbodies/gsbhome/finance-committee/substitute-representatives/en/
- 5. In addition, silent observers from the following Members attended the 166th Session of the Committee:
 - Belgium
 - Costa Rica
 - Cyprus
 - Dominican Republic
 - European Union
 - France
 - Hungary
 - Malaysia
 - Malta
 - Netherlands
 - San Marino
 - Spain
 - Thailand
 - United Kingdom

Monitoring Financial Position

Financial Position of the Organization

6. The Committee reviewed document FC 166/2, the *Financial Position of the Organization* as at 31 December 2016 and cash flow forecast for 2017, including the liquidity of the Organization, the status of outstanding assessed contributions, short- and long-term investments, staff related liabilities, Technical Cooperation Programme (TCP) expenditure and outstanding balances, the General Fund deficit and voluntary contributions.

7. The Committee was also provided with an updated status of current assessments and arrears of the Organization as at 20 March 2017.

8. The Committee:

- a) <u>noted</u> that based on the latest Regular Programme cash levels and projected payment patterns of Member Nations, the Organization's liquidity was expected to be sufficient to cover operational needs through the end of 2017;
- b) <u>recognizing</u> that the Organization's on-going cash flow health was dependent on the timely payment of assessed contributions, <u>urged</u> Member Nations to make payments of assessed contributions on time and in full;
- c) <u>noted</u> that the overall level of the General Fund deficit had marginally decreased to USD 912.4 million as at 31 December 2016 compared with the end of 2015 (USD 922.2 million) and that the deficit was primarily due to unfunded charges for staff related liabilities;
- d) <u>recalled</u> that the underfunding of After Service Medical Coverage (ASMC) liabilities had been discussed by the Committee during its previous sessions when it had emphasized the importance of adopting a common approach amongst the members of the United Nations Common System on this matter and encouraged the Secretariat to continue to review options to address the funding gap;
- e) <u>requested</u> the Secretariat to maintain the TCP expenditure rate at a level that ensures the full implementation of the TCP appropriation as approved by the Conference: and
- f) <u>noted</u> the information provided on investment performance and that this matter would be considered in further detail by the Committee under the agenda item on the *Report on Investments 2016*.

Report on Investments 2016

9. The Committee reviewed document FC 166/3, *Report on Investments 2016*, detailing the performance of short- and long-term investments and the governance process in FAO.

- a) <u>appreciated</u> that while FAO's prudent, low risk investment approach and the low interest rate environment in 2016 had kept returns at 0.63 percent, the total annual return had exceeded the short term benchmark;
- b) <u>welcomed</u> the overall performance of the long term investment portfolio of 5.35 percent, particularly given the context of volatile financial market conditions during 2016;
- c) <u>noted</u> the adoption of revised investment policies for the short- and long-term portfolios during 2016; and
- d) <u>commended</u> the solid governance arrangements in place, including the crossdepartmental internal Investment Committee, the external Advisory Committee on Investments, and the annual reporting to the Finance Committee.

Scale of Contributions 2018-19

11. The Committee reviewed and endorsed the proposed *Scale of Contributions* for the biennium 2018-2019 set out in document FC 166/4.

12. The Committee <u>submits</u> to the Council the following draft resolution of the FAO Scale of Contributions for 2018-19 for adoption by the Conference:

DRAFT CONFERENCE RESOLUTION

Scale of Contributions 2018-19

THE CONFERENCE

<u>Having noted</u> the recommendations of the Hundred and Fifty-sixth Session of the Council;

<u>Confirming</u> that as in the past, FAO should follow the United Nations Scale of Assessments subject to adaptation to the composition of FAO membership;

<u>Decides</u> that the FAO Scale of Contributions for 2018-19 should be derived directly from the United Nations Scale of Assessments in force during 2017;

Adopts for use in 2018 and 2019 the Scale set out in the Annex of this report.

2016 Actuarial Valuation of Staff Related Liabilities

13. The Committee reviewed document FC 166/5, the 2016 Actuarial Valuation of Staff Related Liabilities on the results of the annual valuation by external actuaries and the current financial situation, accounting and funding of the Organization's liability for staff-related plans as at 31 December 2016.

14. The Committee:

- a) <u>noted</u> that total Staff Related Liabilities as of 31 December 2016 amounted to USD 1,319.2 million, representing an increase of USD 194.5 million accrued from the valuation at 31 December 2015, due mainly to changes in the following actuarial assumptions: a decrease in the discount rate used; an increase in the medical cost inflation rate; and a decrease in the year-end EUR-USD exchange rate; and
- b) <u>looked forward</u> to being updated on the decisions taken by the United Nations General Assembly following its consideration of the Report of the After Service Health Insurance (ASHI) Working Group of the Finance and Budget Network, and on efforts being made by the Secretariat to contain the costs of the ASMC Scheme.

Budgetary Matters

Mid-Term Term Review Synthesis Report - 2016

15. The Committee reviewed the *Mid-Term Review Synthesis Report* – 2016, focusing on the Functional Objectives and Special Chapters, the Technical Cooperation Programme (TCP), and the management of delivery and resources.

- a) <u>commended</u> the Secretariat on the quality of the document presented;
- b) <u>expressed satisfaction</u> with the overall performance in 2016, noting that 23 of the 25 key performance indicators (KPIs) of business processes under Functional Objectives

and special Chapters measured in 2016 were on track, and all KPIs were expected to be achieved by the end of 2017;

- c) <u>expressed concern</u> with the performance of KPI 10.1.A with regards to Governing Body documents delivered according to deadlines and language requirements at 71 percent;
- d) <u>welcomed</u> the significant improvement in the rate of TCP approval and delivery compared with the previous biennium;
- e) <u>noted</u> that the delivery of net appropriation resources and voluntary contributions in 2016 was on track at about 50 percent of the budgeted resources;
- f) <u>took note</u> that new measures to improve delivery had been put in place in 2016 and consolidated in 2017; and
- g) <u>looked forward</u> to receiving information on the Organization's biennial achievements against the KPIs, as well as operational and financial performance in the Programme Implementation Report 2016-17.

Annual Report on Budgetary Performance and Programme and Budgetary Transfers for the 2016-17 Biennium

17. The Committee reviewed the Annual Report on Budgetary Performance and Programme and Budgetary Transfers for the 2016-17 Biennium.

18. **The Committee:**

- a) <u>took note</u> of the forecasted 2016-17 budgetary out-turn arising from implementation of the Programme of Work;
- b) <u>recalled</u> that in line with current practice any unspent balances in the Technical Cooperation Programme (Chapter 7), Capital Expenditure (Chapter 13) and Security Expenditure (Chapter 14) would be transferred to the forthcoming biennium as per the Financial Regulations;
- c) <u>approved</u> the forecasted budgetary transfers in favour of Chapters 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8 and 9 from Chapters 1, 10 and 11 as presented in Table 1 of document FC 166/7;
- d) <u>took note</u> of the use of the 2014-15 unspent balance to fund additional expenditures of a one-time nature associated with consolidation of transformational change; and
- e) <u>looked forward</u> to an updated report on forecasted performance at its November 2017 session.

Medium Term Plan 2018-21 and Programme of Work and Budget 2018-19

- 19. The Committee considered the Director-General's *Medium Term Plan 2018-21 and Programme of Work of Budget 2018-19*, focusing on a technical review of the proposals in accordance with its mandate.
- 20. Based on its technical review of the proposals, the Committee:
 - a) <u>appreciated</u> the significant efforts made by the Director-General to prepare a flat nominal budget, with no change in the level of assessed contributions and net budgetary appropriation compared with 2016-17, by absorbing cost increases and reinvesting savings in priority areas of work;
 - b) <u>appreciated</u> the approach to the identification of proposed areas of emphasis, deemphasis and savings and welcomed the principle of reallocation of the USD 23.7 million to increase technical capacity in higher priority areas and to improve programme delivery;

c) <u>welcomed</u> the increase in the TCP appropriation to bring it to 14 percent of the net budgetary appropriation in line with Conference Resolution 9/89 and the recommendation of the Conference at its 39th Session;

- d) <u>reviewed</u> in detail the anticipated cost increases, noting that the Organization would absorb the expected inflation of USD 8.1 million in the cost of goods and services through efficiency measures relating to the costs of consultants, travel and procurement;
- e) to facilitate the consideration of the proposals by the Council, <u>requested</u> the Secretariat to provide further information on the priorities as well as ring-fenced commitments, and the areas of de-emphasis.
- f) requested the secretariat to prepare for the consideration by the Council an information note on proposed outsourcing of conference services elaborating in particular on the reduction of language posts, expected savings as a result of outsourcing, transitional arrangements, and measures to ensure quality of language services and products.
- 21. Concerning the proposals to improve FAO's financial health, liquidity and reserves, **the** Committee:
 - a) <u>took note of</u> the ongoing discussion of the After-service Medical Coverage past service liability by FAO and the UN Common system and the recommendation to continue the approach previously approved by Conference of partial funding of USD 14.1 million as a separate additional assessment for the biennium; and
 - b) <u>took note of</u> the proposal for a one-time assessment on Members of USD 16.2 million to bring the Working Capital Fund to USD 42 million, equivalent to one-month's Regular Programme cash flow.

Human Resources

Human Resources Management

22. The Committee examined document FC 166/9, *Human Resources Management*, which outlined the progress made on human resources management in the Organization.

- a) <u>regretted</u> the lack of adequate Human Resources data and information to substantiate the analysis of annual progress and achievements mentioned in the report;
- b) <u>requested</u> that future reports should: i) focus on achievements and challenges during the reporting period; ii) provide statistical data on staff and non-staff human resources in a standardized format as requested by the Committee at its 164th Session and endorsed by the Council at its 155th Session; and iii) present information on progress made on the implementation of External Auditor recommendations on Human Resources matters;
- c) <u>reiterated</u> the request of the Council at its 155th Session to streamline the process for responding to requests by Members for the timely provision of non-sensitive information on their nationals working in FAO;
- d) <u>noted</u> the update on human resources management in the areas of: (i) recruitment and development of the highest calibre of employees; (ii) alignment of HR management to the strategic and programmatic needs of the Organization; (iii) reflection of FAO's nature as a United Nations system specialized agency, including through implementation of the mobility policy; and (iv) increased efficiency in HR processes and procedures;
- e) <u>noted</u> the reported improvements in the recruitment process of professional and general service staff which led to improvements in the quality of recruitment, greater

transparency and competition and a significant reduction in the overall recruitment time;

- f) <u>appreciated and encouraged</u> the efforts to achieve a projected reduction in the professional staff vacancy rate in keeping with the agreed target of not greater than 15 percent at both headquarters and Decentralized Offices;
- g) <u>welcomed</u> the reported improvements in the distribution of geographic representation which had enabled a significant reduction in the number of non-, underand over-represented countries in the Secretariat of FAO, thus increasing the number of equitably-represented countries and encouraged due attention to this matter without prejudice to the primary consideration for merit;
- h) <u>noted</u> that the geographic distribution targets would be adjusted to reflect the new Scale of Assessments; and
- i) <u>noted</u> the intention of the Secretariat to revise the process for the selection and evaluation of international consultants with a view to improvements in this area.

Oversight

FAO Audit Committee- 2016 Annual Report to the Director-General

24. The Committee reviewed document FC 166/10, FAO Audit Committee - 2016 Annual Report to the Director-General.

25. The Committee:

- a) <u>noted</u> the role of the FAO Audit Committee in providing overarching assurance in the mandated areas under its Terms of Reference;
- b) <u>welcomed</u> the report, which included positive conclusions on the operation of the Office of the Inspector General and relevant advice in relation to FAO's system of internal control, risk management and governance;
- c) <u>expressed</u> satisfaction with the FAO Audit Committee advice, in the areas under its mandate in particular on strengthening the internal control framework, institutionalizing Enterprise Risk Management, the closure of outstanding high-risk recommendations, communication on fraud and corruption prevention, and Officer-in-Charge and travel arrangements of the Office of the Inspector General;
- d) <u>noted</u> the Secretariat's proposal to review whether there had been any actual instances of conflict of interest between the functions of the Ombudsman-Ethics Officer and to explore with the other Rome-based Agencies the possibility of having a common Ombudsman and a common Ethics Office and requested updates on this matter at its future sessions:
- e) <u>appreciated</u> the Director-General's concurrence with the recommendations presented in the report and welcomed in particular the actions being taken to enhance FAO's Internal Control Framework, Organization-wide communication on fraud and corruption prevention, and the filling of auditor vacancies.
- f) <u>welcomed</u> the continuing good engagement with the External Auditor.

Terms of Reference of the FAO Audit Committee

26. The Committee reviewed document FC 161/11, *Terms of Reference of the FAO Audit Committee*.

27. The Committee:

a) <u>recalled</u> that at its 164th Session, the Finance Committee had reviewed a proposed update to the Terms of Reference of the FAO Audit Committee and requested that it be further revised to clarify the Audit Committee's role in facilitating the

coordination of the work of the different oversight functions while safeguarding the independence of the External Auditor and that the Secretariat review the Terms of Reference of the FAO Audit Committee to align them with best practices of other UN Organizations;

- b) <u>noted</u> that the proposed update: entrusted the Audit Committee with the mandate previously held by the Ethics Committee; clarified the Audit Committee's role in coordinating the work of the different oversight functions, OIG, Evaluation, External Auditor and Ethics; established the Audit Committee's consultative role in the selection and dismissal of the Inspector General in line with best practices identified by the Joint Inspection Unit; and expanded the content of the Audit Committee's annual report to the Governing Bodies to include its views on OIG's resources and independence;
- c) <u>agreed</u> to review the proposed update together with further revisions to the Terms of Reference at a future session, including with regard to the reporting line to the Governing Bodies; and
- d) <u>requested</u> the Secretariat to facilitate this review with an analysis of proposed revisions, including any legal implications and the impact of changes on the mandates of the individual Governing Bodies.

2016 Annual Report of the Inspector General

28. The Committee reviewed document FC 166/12, 2016 Annual Report of the Inspector General.

29. **The Committee:**

- a) <u>expressed</u> its satisfaction with the quality of the report and the analysis of issues presented, which covered the full range of responsibilities under the mandate of the Office of the Inspector General, noting that the work of the Office of the Inspector General presented was very relevant and a useful tool for the management and governance of the Organization;
- b) <u>welcomed</u> the good cooperation and convergence of views on internal control issues, between the Office of the Inspector General and management;
- c) <u>encouraged</u> management to expedite the closure of outstanding recommendations, particularly those prior years' recommendations relating to high risks;
- d) welcomed the positive response of the Director-General to the report;
- e) <u>reiterated</u> the importance of continued attention by management to strengthening the Internal Control Framework at headquarters and Decentralized Offices, including through the forthcoming issuance of a Statement of Internal Control to be attached to the FAO Audited Accounts for 2017; and
- f) <u>noted</u> the ongoing joint efforts by management and OIG aimed at filling staff vacancies in the Office of the Inspector General.

FAO Audit Committee Membership

30. The Committee reviewed document FC 166/15a), FAO Audit Committee Membership.

- a) <u>considered</u> the document in which the Director-General recommended that Ms Enery Quinones' and Mr Verasak Liengsririwat's terms on the Committee be extended for a further three years which would bring them to a total of six years on the Committee and noted that such extensions would be made by the Director-General effective from the date of approval by the Council; and
- b) <u>supported</u> the Director-General's recommendation and <u>agreed</u> to submit it to the Council for its endorsement.

Improved Methods of Work and Efficiency of the Finance Committee

Working Methods of the Finance Committee

- 32. The Committee noted the importance of continually reviewing its methods of work in order to achieve its overarching goals and objectives.
- 33. In this regard, the Committee recalled the importance of ensuring that all documents be received by Members, in all languages and with uniformity of quality, at least two weeks prior to each session and preferably as early as possible, to allow due consideration and preparation by Members, and urged the Secretariat to take measures to address this issue.

Other Matters

Date and Place of the Hundred and Sixty-seventh Session

34. The Committee was informed that the 167^{th} Session was scheduled to be held in Rome from 29 to 31 May 2017.

Documents for information

- Status of Current Assessments and Arrears (doc. FC 166/INF/2)
- Report on the Special Fund for Emergency and Rehabilitation Activities (SFERA) (doc. FC 166/INF/3)

Annex - Scale of Contributions 2018-19

Proposed Scale of Contributions 2018-2019

(2016-2017 Scale shown for comparative purposes)

	Proposed	Actual
	Scale ¹	Scale ²
Member Nation	2018-19	2016-17
Afghanistan	0.006	0.005
Albania	0.008	0.01
Algeria	0.161	0.137
Andorra	0.006	0.008
Angola	0.01	0.01
Antigua and Barbuda	0.002	0.002
Argentina	0.892	0.432
Armenia	0.006	0.007
Australia	2.337	2.074
Austria	0.72	0.798
Azerbaijan	0.06	0.04
Bahamas	0.014	0.017
Bahrain	0.044	0.039
Bangladesh	0.01	0.01
Barbados	0.007	0.008
Belarus	0.056	0.056
Belgium	0.885	0.998
Belize	0.001	0.001
Benin	0.003	0.003
Bhutan	0.001	0.001
Bolivia	0.012	0.009
Bosnia and Herzegovina	0.013	0.017
Botswana	0.014	0.017
Brazil	3.823	2.934
Brunei Darussalam	0.029	0.026
Bulgaria	0.045	0.047
Burkina Faso	0.004	0.003
Burundi	0.001	0.001

¹ Derived directly from the UN Scale of Assessments for 2016-2018 as adopted by General Assembly Resolution 70/245 of 23 December 2015.

² Derived directly from the UN Scale of Assessments for 2013-2015 as adopted by General Assembly Resolution 67/238 of 21 December 2012.

Cambodia	0.004	0.004
Cameroon	0.01	0.012
Canada	2.921	2.985
Cape Verde	0.001	0.001
Central African Republic	0.001	0.001
Chad	0.005	0.002
Chile	0.399	0.334
China	7.922	5.149
Colombia	0.322	0.259
Comoros	0.001	0.001
Congo	0.006	0.005
Cook Islands	0.001	0.001
Costa Rica	0.047	0.038
Côte d'Ivoire	0.009	0.011
Croatia	0.099	0.126
Cuba	0.065	0.069
Cyprus	0.043	0.047
Czech Republic	0.344	0.386
Democratic People's Republic of Korea	0.005	0.006
Democratic Republic of the Congo	0.008	0.003
Denmark	0.584	0.675
Djibouti	0.001	0.001
Dominica	0.001	0.001
Dominican Republic	0.046	0.045
Ecuador	0.067	0.044
Egypt	0.152	0.134
El Salvador	0.014	0.016
Equatorial Guinea	0.01	0.01
Eritrea	0.001	0.001
Estonia	0.038	0.04
Ethiopia	0.01	0.01
Fiji	0.003	0.003
Finland	0.456	0.519
France	4.86	5.594
Gabon	0.017	0.02
Gambia	0.001	0.001
Georgia	0.008	0.007
Germany	6.39	7.142
Ghana	0.016	0.014

Greece Grenada	0.471	0.638
Granada		
Orchaua	0.001	0.001
Guatemala	0.028	0.027
Guinea	0.002	0.001
Guinea-Bissau	0.001	0.001
Guyana	0.002	0.001
Haiti	0.003	0.003
Honduras	0.008	0.008
Hungary	0.161	0.266
Iceland	0.023	0.027
India	0.737	0.666
Indonesia	0.504	0.346
Iran (Islamic Republic of)	0.471	0.356
Iraq	0.129	0.068
Ireland	0.335	0.418
Israel	0.43	0.396
Italy	3.748	4.449
Jamaica	0.009	0.011
Japan	9.681	10.834
Jordan	0.02	0.022
Kazakhstan	0.191	0.121
Kenya	0.018	0.013
Kiribati	0.001	0.001
Kuwait	0.285	0.273
Kyrgyzstan	0.002	0.002
Lao People's Democratic Republic	0.003	0.002
Latvia	0.05	0.047
Lebanon	0.046	0.042
Lesotho	0.001	0.001
Liberia	0.001	0.001
Libya	0.125	0.142
Lithuania	0.072	0.073
Luxembourg	0.064	0.081
Madagascar	0.003	0.003
Malawi	0.002	0.002
Malaysia	0.322	0.281
Maldives	0.002	0.001
Mali	0.003	0.004
L	0.016	0.016

Marshall Islands	0.001	0.001
Mauritania	0.002	0.002
Mauritius	0.012	0.013
Mexico	1.435	1.842
Micronesia (Federated States of)	0.001	0.001
Monaco	0.01	0.012
Mongolia	0.005	0.003
Montenegro	0.004	0.005
Morocco	0.054	0.062
Mozambique	0.004	0.003
Myanmar	0.01	0.01
Namibia	0.01	0.01
Nauru	0.001	0.001
Nepal	0.006	0.006
Netherlands	1.482	1.654
New Zealand	0.268	0.253
Nicaragua	0.004	0.003
Niger	0.002	0.002
Nigeria	0.209	0.09
Niue	0.001	0.001
Norway	0.849	0.851
Oman	0.113	0.102
Pakistan	0.093	0.085
Palau	0.001	0.001
Panama	0.034	0.026
Papua New Guinea	0.004	0.004
Paraguay	0.014	0.01
Peru	0.136	0.117
Philippines	0.165	0.154
Poland	0.841	0.921
Portugal	0.392	0.474
Qatar	0.269	0.209
Republic of Korea	2.039	1.994
Republic of Moldova	0.004	0.003
Romania	0.184	0.226
Russian Federation	3.088	2.438
Rwanda	0.002	0.002
Saint Kitts and Nevis	0.001	0.001
Saint Lucia	0.001	0.001

Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	0.001	0.001
Samoa	0.001	0.001
San Marino	0.003	0.003
Sao Tome and Principe	0.001	0.001
Saudi Arabia	1.146	0.864
Senegal	0.005	0.006
Serbia	0.032	0.04
Seychelles	0.001	0.001
Sierra Leone	0.001	0.001
Singapore	0.447	0.384
Slovakia	0.16	0.171
Slovenia	0.084	0.1
Solomon Islands	0.001	0.001
Somalia	0.001	0.001
South Africa	0.364	0.372
South Sudan	0.003	0.004
Spain	2.443	2.973
Sri Lanka	0.031	0.025
Sudan	0.031	0.023
Suriname	0.006	0.004
Swaziland	0.002	0.003
Sweden	0.956	0.96
Switzerland	1.14	1.047
Syrian Arab Republic	0.024	0.036
Tajikistan	0.024	0.003
Thailand	0.291	0.239
The former Yugoslav Republic	0.201	0.239
of Macedonia	0.007	0.000
Timor-Leste	0.003	0.002
Togo	0.001	0.001
Tonga	0.001	0.001
Trinidad and Tobago	0.034	0.044
Tunisia	0.028	0.036
Turkey	1.018	1.328
Turkmenistan	0.026	0.019
Tuvalu	0.001	0.001
Uganda	0.009	0.006
Ukraine	0.103	0.099
United Arab Emirates	0.604	0.595
United Kingdom	4.464	5.18

United Republic of Tanzania	0.01	0.009
United States of America	22	22
Uruguay	0.079	0.052
Uzbekistan	0.023	0.015
Vanuatu	0.001	0.001
Venezuela (Bolivarian	0.571	0.627
Republic of)		
Viet Nam	0.058	0.042
Yemen	0.01	0.01
Zambia	0.007	0.006
Zimbabwe	0.004	0.002
	100	100